
 

General Business                                        Lower Saucon Township                                          June 1, 2016 

& Developer                                                      Council Agenda                                                        7:00 p.m. 
 

 

I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS  

 

III DEVELOPER ITEMS 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Quarterly Township Landfill Consultant Report 

B. PennEast Pipeline – PA DEP Proposed State Water Quality Certification 

C. Authorize Advertisement to Obtain Bids for Seidersville Hall Roof Replacement 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Approval of May 18, 2016 Council Minutes 

 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council/Jr. Council Member 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 E. Planner  

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 
Next Planning Commission Meeting:  June 2, 2016 

Next Park & Rec Meeting:  June 6, 2016 

Next EAC Meeting:  June 14, 2016 

Next Council Meeting:  June 15, 2016 

Next Zoning Hearing Board Meeting:  June 20, 2016 

Next Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission Meeting:  June 27, 2016 @ LST 

Next Saucon Valley Partnership:  September 14, 2016 @ HB 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 



 

General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                           June 1, 2016 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                       7:00 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council 

was called to order on Wednesday June 1, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., at Lower Saucon Township, 3700 Old 

Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA with Mr. Ron Horiszny, presiding.     

ROLL CALL:  Present:  Ron Horiszny, President; Sandra Yerger, Vice President; Priscilla deLeon, Glenn 

Kern, Donna Louder, Council members; Leslie Huhn, Township Manager;  Linc Treadwell, Township 

Solicitor and Jr. Council Member, Kelsey Gatchel.   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) 

Mr. Horiszny said Council did meet in Executive Session at the end of their last meeting to discuss a land 

offer, which they declined.  They have not met in Executive Session since then. 

PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mr. Horiszny said if you are on the agenda, you have Council and Staff’s undivided attention.  If you do 

choose to speak, we ask that you use one of the microphones.  He asks that you give your fellow public the 

courtesy of the floor.  We ask that you state your name for the record so the transcriptionist knows who is 

speaking in the minutes.  If you are up at the table, please speak into the microphone.   

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARING – None 

 

III. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None 

 

IV. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. QUARTERLY TOWNSHIP LANDFILL CONSULTANT REPORT 

Mr. Jim Birdsall, Hanover Engineering was present.  Mr. Birdsall reviewed his revised letter of 

May 25, 2016.   He said the average tonnage has gone down quite a bit.  He reviewed the landfill 

gas management and spoke about the incident on February 16, 2016 where a windstorm lifted the 

temporary cap on the south face. 

 

Mr. Birdsall said the Surface Emission Monitoring report that occurred on February 25, 2016 

showed zero locations exceeding 500 ppm, which is great and is due to the fact that they have a 

temporary cap on it.  In April DEP found 15 locations out of 60 that were showing some 

exceedances.  Mrs. deLeon said it seems that when IESI and DEP do that testing, IESI comes up 

with less exceedances.  She questions the methodology.   

 

Mr. Birdsall said the committee found concerns related to the gas topic.  They are recommending 

Council authorize a letter be sent to DEP with the five bullet items listed on page 3 of his letter, 

which he reviewed.   

 

Mr. Birdsall reviewed the leachate management and went over the flows in the detection zones 

which are less.  An action plan was requested by DEP in March 2016 and they are wondering when 

that plan would be available to the Township.  The committee recommends if you send a letter to 

DEP, that a reference to the March 25
th
 letter be added asking for a status report on the remediation 

project.   

 

Mr. Birdsall reviewed the groundwater management and stated the wells are operating well and 

there are no concerns.  He reviewed the traffic management and said there were no concerns.   He 

reviewed the stormwater management and said there were no major issues. 

 

Mr. Birdsall said the status of the permit application to DEP there is a major permit modification 

amendment before the P/C.  They are not aware if DEP is going to schedule another staff meeting 

with IESI and the Township to go over their preliminary findings on harms benefit.  Roger Bellas 

does not anticipate any meeting with the Township.    

 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 1, 2016 
 

Page 2 of 4 

Mr. Horiszny asked if Mr. Bellas would be agreeable to a workshop.  Mr. Birdsall said he didn’t 

ask him that as he didn’t have the authority.  Mr. Horiszny thinks it would be better to meet with 

DEP and likes a workshop better than a letter.  Mrs. deLeon said the letter needs to be sent and in 

the past we’ve had public meetings with DEP on the application process.  In the Sunshine Law, 

there is no reference to a workshop.  Attorney Treadwell said it’s one thing if the staff meets with 

DEP to discuss technical review issues but a whole other thing to have a quorum at a public 

meeting with DEP.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said DEP will be sending a letter of what IESI has in terms of harms benefit.  It would 

be best to see this letter before a meeting is created just in case everything is okay.   

 

Mr. Birdsall said in April, IESI has hired Nick Rogers as Compliance Manager.  Mr. Horiszny 

stated today was Allan Schleyer’s last day, as he’s retiring.   

 

Mr. Birdsall said they are recommending that Council authorize a letter be prepared with regard to 

the storage of waste at the BRE facility, however Lauressa McNemar feels a letter isn’t needed 

because it could be addressed by way of verbal inquiries with Allan Schleyer.  This isn’t directly 

related to the landfill but is on landfill property.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said BRE is definitely part of the landfill and has an effect on the landfill.  BRE was 

supposed to be disposing of waste every week and hazardous waste is just sitting there.  Mrs. 

Louder asked if IESI has any liability with the BRE owners as it’s on the landfill’s property.  

Attorney Treadwell said he has no idea what their lease says with BRE and it’s a private issue.   

 

Mr. Birdsall would like clarity on whom to bill.  Mrs. deLeon said this is a legitimate Township 

expense. 

 

Mrs. Louder asked if a letter could be sent to DEP regarding BRE and asking them about the 

temporary holding tanks and telling them they have neglected their PPC plan.  Mrs. Yerger asked 

why Ms. McNemar is reluctant to send a letter?  Mrs. deLeon said they have to have Council’s 

permission.  Mrs. Louder said Al Schleyer isn’t there anymore, so we need to take steps and make 

sure we have a handle on this and we need to send a letter to make sure the Township is not 

harmed.   

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon made a motion to authorize the Landfill Technical Consultant Committee be 

authorized and paid to review information on BRE that is related to the landfill in their site 

plan approval as determined by the Manager. 

 Mr. Horiszny said when the valve is off, it goes to the landfill flare, so they are totally out of it.  

Attorney Treadwell said what kind of drum is this hazardous waste sitting in?  Mrs. Louder said 

big plastic containers.  Attorney Treadwell said if it’s not generating any condensate, how many 

days does it have to be emptied.  Mrs. Louder said the system broke and the 1,600 gallons is sitting 

in the tank.  Attorney Treadwell said that’s why Lauressa is saying call them and ask them what 

they are going to do with the 1,600 gallons.  Mrs. Yerger said let’s get someone who has authority 

to answer this.  Mrs. Huhn said she will reach out to BRE. 

SECOND BY:  Mrs. Louder 

 Mrs. Louder withdrew her second and said why don’t we have Mrs. Huhn send a letter to BRE to 

find out their intentions and get all the details we can.  If we don’t feel they are complying, then we 

need to take steps into having DEP look into it further.  Attorney Treadwell said there seems to be 

two issues; one is what’s in the tank and the other is are the Landfill Consultants going to have 

some type of oversite of BRE operations from here on forward.  Mrs. Huhn said if they are not 

operating what would the Technical Consultants be reviewing?   Attorney Treadwell said the same 

thing they do with the landfill.  Mr. Birdsall said his concern is professional qualifications, so he 

will have to check to see if anyone at HEA has them.  Regarding the landfill, they have a right by 

Council and the State to have a host municipal inspector visit that site but we don’t have that 

authority for BRE.  Attorney Treadwell said before Council makes a decision, why doesn’t Council 



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 1, 2016 
 

Page 3 of 4 

ask Mr. Birdsall to check on the qualifications and provide a summary of what they would feel 

comfortable doing.  Mrs. Huhn will contact BRE and find out what’s going on with the waste in the 

tank.  Mrs. deLeon withdrew her motion.  Mr. Birdsall reviewed the inspections and the odor 

issues.  He asked if the Manager could be authorized to send a letter to DEP on the issue talked 

about earlier?   

 

MOTION BY: Mrs. deLeon made a motion to authorize the Manager send a letter to DEP on the comments 

about the air quality issues on page 3 from the May 25, 2016 Technical Consultants Committee 

letter. 

SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 
ROLL CALL:  5-0 

Mrs. Louder said in the DEP reports, they don’t list their wind direction.  Mr. Birdsall said he will 

ask DEP.  Mrs. deLeon has called DEP several times on the odor issue.   
 

B. PENNEAST PIPELINE – PA DEP PROPOSED STATE WATER QUALITY 

CERTIFICATION 

Mr. Horiszny said the Delaware Riverkeeper network is requesting comments be submitted to DEP 

regarding the proposed State Water Quality Certification.  Council should decide if they want 

Attorney Charles Elliott to prepare a letter for this request.  Mr. Horiszny said we should ask him if 

a letter is warranted.  Attorney Treadwell said we need to have it in by June 13, 2016 and it doesn’t 

hurt to have Attorney Elliott prepare a letter. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny made a motion to direct Charles Elliott to prepare a letter based on the request of 

the Delaware Riverkeeper network and have it submitted to DEP prior to June 13, 2016 if he 

thinks it is advisable. 

SECOND BY:  Mrs. Yerger 

 Mrs. deLeon will support this motion but disagrees with Mr. Horiszny’s comment. 
ROLL CALL:  5-0 

 

C. AUTHORIZE ADVERTISEMENT TO OBTAIN BIDS FOR SEIDERSVILLE HALL ROOF 

REPLACEMENT 

Mrs. Huhn said this has been budgeted in the Capital Fund.  They are recommending the bid 

package be prepared and authorize the advertisement.  The existing roof is a slate imitation 

installed in the 1980’s.  The PW Director has recommended we use the same material we have on 

the Township building.  Mrs. Louder asked why we didn’t combine the PW Garage roof and this 

one as we may have gotten it cheaper.  Mrs. Huhn said that’s a good point and she will inquire.   

MOTION BY: Mr. Kern made a motion for approval to authorize advertisement to solicit bids for the 

replacement of Seidersville roof. 

SECOND BY:  Mrs. Louder 
ROLL CALL:  5-0 

 

V. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MAY 18, 2016 COUNCIL MINUTES 

Mr. Horiszny said he had three minor corrections. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny made a motion for approval of the May 18, 2016 Council minutes, with 

corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

ROLL CALL: 4-1 (Mrs. deLeon – No) 

 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT/CITIZEN NON-AGENDA ITEMS – None 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 

A. TOWNSHIP MANAGER 

 Mrs. Huhn had a special event application for the SVC Arts Festival being held June 4, 

2016.  Staff reviewed the request and made the same recommendations as last year.  Mrs. 

deLeon said next year remind the SVC to be more prompt in submitting their application.   



General Business & Developer Meeting    

June 1, 2016 
 

Page 4 of 4 

MOTION BY: Mr. Horiszny made a motion for approval of the Special Event application for the SVC Arts 

Festival. 

SECOND BY: Mrs. Yerger 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 

 Mrs. deLeon asked how they are going to be naming the nature trail.  Mrs. Huhn said it’s only 

for one day for the donor and it will be placed on a removable yard sign. 

 Mrs. Huhn reminded Council of the Volunteer Appreciation Picnic on June 13
th
 and said 

26 responses were received. 

B.      COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL 

Kelsey Gatchel, Jr. Council – She said school ends in a week.   

Mr. Kern – No report 

Mrs. Yerger 

 She said the Lutz-Franklin Schoolhouse invites everyone to their picnic on June 11
th
. 

Mrs. deLeon 
 She asked if Mrs. Huhn saw the two signs PennDOT put up at the Meadows Road 

intersection?  Mrs. Huhn said it’s part of a PennDOT initiative to make it less confusing 

and safer.  She will go out tomorrow with Mr. Rasich to inspect and provide his feedback. 

 She read a lot about the Keep Kids Safe initiative that the Governor started which applies 

to volunteer organizations.  She would like the Manager to see how this applies to our 

Township.  

Mrs. Louder – No report 

Mr. Horiszny 

 He said Wildlands Bike & Boat program had the Saucon Valley 8
th
 graders four days last 

week with about 50 students each day learning about biking and boating.   

C. SOLICITOR – No report 

D. PLANNER – Not present 

E. ENGINEER – Not present 
 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for adjournment.  The time was 8:12 p.m. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Horiszny 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 
 

 

Submitted by: 
 

 
 

 

________________________________   __________________________________ 

Leslie Huhn      Ron Horiszny     

Township Manager     Council President 


